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Hanway House

200 S. Main Street
Bel Air

Private

Harry D. Hanway designed and built this house in 1901. It
is the best example of the mature Queen Anne style in Town.
Particularly notable are the corner tower, the fishscale shingles,
and the corner fireplaces in the living room and dining room. The
house serves as offices for the law firm of Brown, Brown &
Lannahan today.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This two and a half story frame house with elements of Queen Anne
on the exterior is at 200 S. Main Street in Bel Air, Harford County,
Maryland. The house is essentially a rectangle. The asphalt shingle
roof shows four gables, one each on each elevation, the east (front)
and west (rear) gable lines meeting the transverse gables at right
angles and covering respectively the south two-thirds of the front
roof line and the whole of the rear part of the original house.

This is because the northernmost bay of the west (rear) elevation is

a recent addition. That bay was originally a one story back porch

which was enclosed in 1959. A second story room was added over it

at that time. A square tower with a hipped roof occupies the north

bay in the east (front) elevation. The house is covered in clapboard

in the first story; the very slightly projecting second story has dternaing
rows of plain and fish scale shaped shingles. The same pattern

decorates the gable ends and the tower.

Originally the front (east) elevation had three bays with the
entrance in the south bay. A hipped roofed porch has been enclosed
and shows two bays with the shutter-flanked entrance in the south v
bay and a large multi-paned window, also flanked by long louvered ‘
shutters, in the second bay. The porch originally had turned posts
and balusters and a row of small turned spindles at the roof line.
The second story (and both stories in the north and west elevations)
shows the original 1/1 double-hung sash windows flanked by original
wooden louvered shutters. The tower has stained glass lunettes in
the east and north portions. The rear elevation (to the west) shows
where the porch has been enclosed and a small room has been added
to the north. A wooden dog-leg open string staircase with plain
post and bannister (also 1959 vintage) rises first at right angles
to the elevation for a short run and then turns parallel to the
elevation for the rest of the height. A

The interior shows a tight side hall plan with three rooms, one
of them the enclosed porch, on the north side of the building. The
front staircase is open-string with decorative brackets, turned
balusters, and reeded newel posts with ball finials. The staircase
is a double dog-leg, three steps up at right angles to the wall, a
landing, another flight parallel to the wall, and then a lJanding and
a final leg at right angles to the second floor balustrade (now
sheathed in paneling). A balustrade guards the first landing. That
newel post once had a bronze figurine on it, probably holding a
lamp. A built-in seat with storage space occupies the ground level
space under this balustrade. West of the main staircase, level
with the dining room, is an enclosed tight dog-leg service staircase.
Behind this to the west is what was once the pantry and is now
a bathroom. The original kitchen across the back is at right angles
to the hall.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This rectangular vernacular cottage is an interesting example of
what happens to a style in the hands of a gentleman amateur. An
announcement in the Bel Air Aegis  for April 12, 1901, states that
Harry D. Hanway was revising plans for the cottage he proposed to build
on the Amos property. The cottage is vaguely Queen Anne in its shingle
decoration, in its tower, in the stained glass lunettes that decorate the
tower, in the spindles that used to be on the front porch and in the
chimney stack. The facade massing is also vaguely Queen Anne. But,
as is the case with so much of Bel Air architecture, the form has not
been rendered expansively. The building seems constricted, stripped,
elongated out of almost all resemblance to what one normally regards as
Queen Anne. It is, for one thing, on too small a lot to spread itself
comfortably, which is the essence of Queen Anne. The interior fails
the Queen Anne test, too. It has a tight side hall plan three rooms
deep with another room at the end of the hall. The essence of the Queen
Anne interior, with or without the living hall, is the opening up of
informal 1living space and free circulation within the house. This
cottage is constricted, almost repressed, in its circulation, and the
arrangement of the living space is quite formal. That is not to say
it is not a comfortable house; it is. It simply does not have the
easy informality that characterizes the Queen Anne. Mr. Hanway did
design a comfortable and attractive house with a modified Queen Anne
skin. Vernacular architecture is often like that. The amateur designs
an interior to suit his life, picks various decorative elements he
likes and disposes them about the outside, builds the house, and moves
in, never realizing - or caring - that he has done anything unusual.

This cottage is the second structure on the lot. The property
was owned by Nathaniel W. S. Hays, brother to Bel Air's most prominent
land owner, Thomas Hays. When Nathaniel Hays died, his estate was
greatly incumbered and some of the land had to be sold as the result
of a suit (Otho Scott vs. Maria Hays et al, equity records 11/1).
Stevenson Archer was trustee for the sale. He sold an undivided half
of the property to his wife, Jane, for $200. She subsequently sold
that share to Nathan Dean. Archer, Mrs. Archer, and Dean conveyed
the whole lot, lot #13 on the original town plat, to Isaac Amos
(18/319, 1867). The lot cost him $1300. Amos built a store and
residence there in 1867 where he lived and ran his hardware store
until his death in 1899. Before his death, Amos had mortgaged the

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

This property occupies parcel #1269 in the Town of Bel Air
34.7' x 154.3!

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE ] COUNTY T
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Marilynn Larew, Architectural Historial 16 March 1979
ORGANIZATION DATE
Town of Bel Air 838-8700
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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The two side rooms, parlor and dining room respectively, are the
same size. There are sliding doors to the hall and between the two
rooms. The door surrounds are Victorian, fluted with carved corner
blocks. The other downstairs doors are original five panel. The
two public rooms have fireplaces back to back in the angle of the
southwest (east) corner of the rooms. Corinthian columns on plain
blocks support the mantel shelf. Small glazed green tiles make up
the hearths. The fireplaces are boarded up.

The second floor has five rooms, all corresponding to the
downstairs spaces except the front south room which is over the
downstairs entrance hall. BAn enclosed dog-leg stair rises to
the third level over the front staircase. A severely plain
bannister, balusters, and balustrade protects this staircase. One
room occupies the north gable, perhaps a nursery or servant's room.
The other gables are occupied by attic storage space.

All of the rooms, including the enclosed front porch, are now
lawyers' offices, the parlor being the secretaries' space.

A dirt floored cellar shows the stone rubble construction of
the foundation which is obscured outside by painted plaster.

(#7 cont'd)
Page 2 of 2
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property for $3000. Mrs. Amos died in January, 1901. Neither estate
was sufficient to pay the Amos's debts. William O. Davis, the assignee
of the mortgage, sued the property to sale and became the trustee for
the sale. It was he who sold it to Harry D. Hanway in 1901 for $4500
(102/125). That spring Hanway razed the store and built the present
house. Sometime between 1901 and 1904 he built the brick house next
door to the south and divided the lot. That house was sold to Hall

L. Munnikhuysen in 1909.

In 1911 Hanway sold his house and the smaller lot (34.7 x 154.3)
to Joseph T. Deckman (134/47). Deckman held it five days and sold it
to Frank H. Jacobs, grandson of Thomas Hays and, thus, great nephew
to Nathaniel Hays, the owner of the original lot.

After World war I, Jacobs sold it to J. Glasgow Archer, Sr., and
his wife Eljizabeth. The Archers lived there until World War II; J.
Glasgow Archer, Jr., now a Bel Air lawyer, carved his name on a post
in the basement. The Archers sold the house to Lillian R. Forwood in
1942 (275/438). She died in 1951 and left it to her sister Priscilla
(will 22/373). Priscilla Forwood sold it to Flora E. Dailey in a
straw-man transaction in 1952 (376/445). She and Cosmo G. Mackenzie

and Julia, his wife, bought it back the same day (376/448). Miss
Forwood and the Mackenzies sold it to the present owners (200 South
Main, Inc.) in 1959 (523/12). It now serves as offices for the law
firm of Brown, Brown, and Lanahan. The present owners enclosed the
front and back porches and added a room over the back porch. Many of
the interior walls were paneled at that time and the stair well was
enclosed at the second floor baluster. The woodwork and doors are
original, as are the two downstairs fireplaces which have been
attractively closed. The first floor pantry under the back staircase
was made into a bathroom.

(#8 cont'd)
Page 2 of 2
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TITLE:
200 S. MAIN STREET

523/12 11 March 1959
Priscilla Forwood, single, of Harford County
and Cosmo G. Mackenzie and Julia, wife of
Denver County, Colorado.
to
200 S. Main, Inc.
34.7 x 154.3

376/448 17 July 1952
Flora E. Dailey
to

Priscilla Forwood and Cosmo G. Mackenzie
and Julia, wife

376/445 17 July 1952
Priscilla Forwood
to
Flora E. Dailey
Priscilla Forwood inherited from her sister
Lillian R. Forwood who died in 1951 (will

22/373)
275/438 15 December 1942
J. Glasgow Archer & Elizabeth, wife
to

Lillijan R. Forwood

166/191 11 December 1919
Frank H. Jacobs and Elizabeth, wife
to
J. Glasgow Archer & Elizabeth, wife

134/49 6 May 1911
Joseph T. Deckman and Florida, wife
to
Frank H. Jacobs

134/47 1 May 1911
Harry D. Hanway and Hazel, wife
to
Joseph T. Deckman
the lot 34.7 x 154.3



102/125

18/319

HA-222

2 April 1901

William O. Davis, trustee
to

Harry D. Hanway

$4500

Davis was a complaintant in Davis vs Smith
(Equity Records 57/61). 1Isaac Amos, owner
of a larger lot, lot #13 on the original
Town plat, had mortgaged the lot for $3000
to Amos Spencer. Amos's store was on the
northeast corner of the lot. Amos died
March 4, 1899, and Mrs. Amos died in
January, 1901.

Neither estate was sufficient to pay the
debts. Davis was the assignee of the Spencer
mortgage; he sued the property to sale and
became the trustee for the sale.

8 April 1867
Stevenson Archer, trustee, Jane Archer, wife,
and Nathan Dean
to
Isaac Amos

Archer was the trustee in Otho Scott vs. Maria
Hays et al (11/1). Maria Hays was the widow
of Nathaniel W. S. Hays, brother to Thomas
Hays. Nathaniel Hays was the owner of a great
deal of property in Harford County. When he
died there was not enough ready cash to pay
the debts, so some of the property was sold.
Mrs. Archer bought an undivided half of this
lot for $200. She subsequently sold it to
Nathan Dean who sold it to Isaac Amos for
$650. Archer by this deed conveys both halves
to Amos. The whole transaction cost Amos
$1300.
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